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Dear Alex

Electricity Act Schedule 9 Statement

I write in response to Ofgem’s September consultation on the above subject. SSE takes its environmental responsibilities seriously and has, for several years, produced a publicly available environmental report. Our generation business is certified to the ISO 14001 Environmental Management Standard with our other businesses working to the same standard. We have also been participating in external benchmarking of performance through the Business in the Environment Index of Corporate Environmental Engagement.

SSE is therefore committed to environmental management, reporting and discussion with interested parties: the Schedule 9 obligations form part of our overall activities in this area. We are not aware that any interested party has expressed any concern with the level or scope of information that we make available or made any comments suggesting that the present arrangements are not working well. We are therefore concerned that in some of its proposals, Ofgem appears to be seeking to introduce further obligations and greater regulation for licensees in relation to environmental issues. We are not clear that Ofgem has the powers to do this, and firmly oppose any extension of the burden of regulation in this area. Where Ofgem might have a role going forward is in perhaps providing some guidance for new and/or smaller electricity licensees on the legislative requirements and possible content of Schedule 9 statements.

I set out below some detailed comments on points raised in the consultation document.

Key Performance Indicators
At paragraph 2.27, there is a comment about Ofgem working with the Environment Agency and DEFRA on developing key performance indicators for environmental reporting. As Ofgem comments earlier in the document, “the energy sector is in many ways one of the leading industries for environmental reporting”. Indeed, the Electricity Association (EA) has already established key environmental performance indicators for the electricity industry, which are published annually, and we work with the EA to develop new indicators as appropriate to changing market conditions. We are therefore concerned that there may be duplication of existing reporting if Ofgem seeks to develop a further benchmarking framework.

Model Statement and Draft Guidance

At paragraph 4.4, Ofgem invites comment on the draft guidance and model Schedule 9 statement attached to the consultation paper. Such guidance may be useful for licensees starting up and perhaps a “supply only” model statement would be helpful to some of these new licensees. However we believe that it should be clear in these documents what is actually required in statutory terms in a Schedule 9 statement, and what other content could optionally be considered. For example, the model statement appears to go beyond the statutory requirements in areas such as public reporting on “measures taken to implement Schedule 9 commitments”.

Focus of Schedule 9 Statements

In paragraph 4.10, Ofgem seeks comments on whether an important focus of Schedule 9 statements should continue to be activities and sites that are not specifically covered by planning consents and regulation. We do not accept that there is specifically “an important focus” on such activities and sites at present. The Schedule 9 statement is a statement of a company’s intent, agreed with its statutory consultees, on how it will mitigate the effect on amenity of any “relevant proposals”. Thus no types of proposals are given any special emphasis under the legislation and we would oppose any move to increase regulation in this area.

Ofgem seeks comment, at paragraph 4.14, on the view that the major focus of Schedule 9 statements should continue to include the direct impacts on “flora, fauna, and geological or physiographical features of special interest and of protecting sites, buildings and objects of architectural, historic and archaelogical interest.” Since all the items in Ofgem’s list are included in Schedule 9 of the Act, we are puzzled by the question. We certainly agree that the scope of Schedule 9 statements does not need to be any wider than the list of items specifically mentioned in the legislation as comprising “amenity”.


Updating of Statements

At paragraph 4.16, Ofgem seeks views on the optimum length of time between updates to Schedule 9 statements. Since these statements form statements of intent, as discussed between a licensee and its statutory consultees, they are not likely to need updating routinely. It should therefore be up to the licensee how often it updates the statement.

Reporting on Schedule 9

Ofgem discusses annual reporting in the context of the Schedule 9 process and seeks views, at paragraph 4.19, on whether reports on Schedule 9 issues within environmental reports would be a useful way of monitoring and reporting performance under Schedule 9. We are firmly opposed to any requirement to report on Schedule 9 issues and contend that there is no legislative requirement for this, nor any authority for Ofgem to introduce such a requirement.

Co-ordination Role for Ofgem

At paragraphs 4.20 to 4.24, Ofgem discusses various ways in which, in practical terms, it could carry out a co-ordinating role in relation to Schedule 9 and its requirements. We agree that it is proper for Ofgem to include information about Schedule 9 in the information packs it sends to prospective and new licensees. However, we are not clear that Ofgem has any role in monitoring licensees’ statements, or why there would be a need to keep a central record of these statements. To the extent that they find this useful, presumably the statutory consultees in the Schedule 9 process could keep such records.

We do not favour an annual workshop on Schedule 9 issues involving all licensees. If the newer or smaller licensees have issues to discuss, it may be that Ofgem could facilitate informal meetings with such licensees as and when it seemed appropriate.

Scottish Schedule 9 Consultees

At paragraphs  4.25 to 4.27, Ofgem discusses the recent Bill in the Scottish Parliament which aims to abolish a number of Non-Departmental Public Bodies in Scotland, including two of the statutory consultees under Schedule 9. Ofgem concludes that “it may be desirable” for licensees to be required to consult with a body that has responsibility for the built environment and architecture. As the consultation paper subsequently notes, there is already day to day contact between SSE and Historic Scotland on Schedule 9 issues even though Historic Scotland is not a statutory consultee. This contact is on the same footing as that with Scottish Natural Heritage and the Fisheries Committee, who are statutory consultees. Therefore the abolition of the Ancient Monuments Board for Scotland and the Historic Buildings Council for Scotland is unlikely to have any significant effect on the level of discussions which take place on Schedule 9 issues relating to the built environment and architecture. 

I hope you find these comments helpful.

Yours sincerely

Rob McDonald

Group Regulation Manager

